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COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PLANS FOR
1601 S. PACIFIC STREET

·

· ’
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REVETMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE

SITE

VICINITY MAP



S2

Revetment Maintenance

REVETMENT MAINTENANCE IS
LIMITED TO THE IMPORTATION

OF ABOUT 10% OF THE
EXISTING REVETMENT VOLUME

REVETMENT TOTAL TONNAGE ~ 1500 TONS, LENGTH ~ 120'
TOTAL IMPORT PROPOSED (24X6) = 144 TONS

(E)

1601 S. Pacific Street  
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CITY OF OCEANSIDE REVETMENT STANDARD M-19

PROPOSED PROFILE
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Revetment Maintenance
1601 S. Pacific Street  

EQUIPMENT ACCESS & STORAGE
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Northern Stairway

Southern Stairway

Private Access Stairways 
to be Removed



Concrete Grouting to be Removed



Geotechnical C Geologic C Coastal C Environmental

5741 Palmer Way  C Carlsbad, California 92010  C  (760) 438-3155  C  FAX (760) 931-0915  C  www.geosoilsinc.com

M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: June 14, 2023

TO: Toni Ross, California Coastal Commission (CCC)
Royce Sheets, OVARD HOA

FROM: David Skelly, PE

SUBJECT: Discussion of Concrete Removal From Revetment at 1601 South pacific
Street, Oceanside.  

Based upon our recent inspection, information provided by the HOA, and our conference
call with CCC staff, we are please to provide the following information concerning the
concrete and its removal from the revetment during the proposed revetment maintenance
at the subject site. 

The concrete was placed by a previous HOA member in the 1980s to stop wave
overtopping.  The concrete was pumped from the driveway onto the revetment. It is our
understanding the only a few trucks were used.  Concrete trucks hold up to 8 cubic yards
of material.  This means that there is likely less than 40 cubic yards of concrete placed on
the revetment. The revetment is made up of 1,500 to 2,000 cubic yards of rock. The
majority of the concrete is at the crest of the structure. The concrete was poured on the
surface (not injected into the structure) and is only a few inches thick in most areas.  Much
of the concrete at the revetment top is currently cracked. The most amount of solid
concrete is at the access stairs, which are to be removed as a condition of the permit. 
There is essentially no concrete in the lower 2/3rds of the revetment.  The figures below
show the distribution of concrete on the revetment in plan and section view.  Much of the
lower portion of the structure is not visible in the second image due to the sand and
cobbles covering the structure.
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Based upon our recent conference call, which included Mike Cantarini, the rock work
contractor, the concrete will break from the rock with very little effort from the excavator.
The excavator is needed to retrieve the rolled off rocks and to remove the beach access
stairs. There is NO steel in the concrete.  The concrete will continue to breakup during the
maintenance and much of it can be carried away manually. Once the concrete is dislodged
it will be removed by hand.  Large pieces can be easily broken into smaller pieces by the
excavator allowing for hand extraction of the concrete material.  In as much as the majority
of the concrete is at the crest of the revetment the material will simply be collected by hand
from the top of the revetment and taken to a truck for disposal.    The contractor has
identified the nearby Moodys El Corazon Recycling at the place to recycle the concrete. 
The contractor explained that the concrete removal work is performed essentially on the
surface rocks in the upper ½ of the revetment and that the work only moves about 20% of
the rocks that are on the structure. 
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